Vagnero

THE VAQUERO CLUB, INC.
RULES AND REGULATIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Preamble	1
General Club Rules	1
Membership Cards	3
Member Dues and Charges	4
Mailing Addresses	4
Club Services and Activities	5
Resignation of Membership	
Loss or Destruction of Property or Instances of Personal Injury	5
Reservations and Cancellations	
Gratuities	7
Children	7
Attire	7
Guest Privileges	8
General Golf Rules	8
Hours Of Play	10
Golf Starting Times	10
Registration	10
Practice Grounds	
Caddie Rules	11
General Golf Cart Rules	11
Handicaps	12
Golf Course Etiquette	13
General Tennis Rules	13
Tennis Etiquette	14
Fitness Facilities	15

PREAMBLE

These Rules and Regulations are intended to be a guide to the use of The Vaquero Club, Inc. (the "Club") facilities. They are not intended to deal with all conceivable issues that may be presented for governance. These Rules and Regulations are established by the Club to protect the Club Facilities and to promote the health, safety, welfare and enjoyment of the members, their families and guests and all other persons using the Club Facilities. The Club is committed to providing all members and their guests with an enjoyable club experience. To uphold these standards, members and guests are expected to act in a manner consistent with good taste. The Club may amend these Rules and Regulations from time to time as it determines appropriate in its sole discretion.

GENERAL CLUB RULES

- 1. Members, their families and their guests shall abide by all rules and regulations of the Club as they may be amended from time to time.
- 2. The Club's Facilities shall be open on the days and during the hours as may be established from time to time by the Board of Directors of the Club. Areas of the Club may also be closed from time to time for scheduled maintenance and repairs.
- 3. No performance by entertainers will be permitted on the Club Facilities without the permission of the General Manager.
- 4. Dining room activities for groups will be permitted only with the permission of the General Manager.
- 5. Alcoholic beverages will not be served or sold, nor permitted to be consumed, at the Club during hours or at locations prohibited by law. No alcoholic beverages will be sold or served to any person not permitted to purchase the same under the laws of the State of Texas, or any applicable ordinances or regulations. All alcoholic beverages consumed or otherwise possessed on the Club Facilities must be sold and purchased at the Club. The Club reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to refuse service to a member or guest when that member or guest appears to be intoxicated.
- 6. Outside catering is not permitted. All food and beverages consumed on the Club Facilities must be furnished by the Club unless otherwise permitted by the General Manager.
- 7. Employees are permitted to deliver food or alcoholic beverages to locations away from the immediate area of the clubhouse or other designated areas only with the permission of the General Manager.
- 8. Commercial advertisements shall not be posted or circulated in the Club nor shall solicitations of any kind be made on the Club Facilities or upon the Club's stationery without the prior approval of the Board of Directors.
- 9. Other than as permitted by the Board of Directors, no petition shall be originated, solicited, circulated or posted on any of the Club Facilities.

- 10. Members shall not use the roster or list of members of the Club for solicitation or commercial purposes. Members shall not distribute the roster or list of members.
- 11. It is contrary to the Club's policy to have the facilities used for functions which are in any way related to past, present or future fundraising efforts for the benefit of a political cause, except as specifically permitted by the Board of Directors. The Club Facilities shall not be used in connection with organized religious services unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- 12. Members should not request special personal services from employees of the Club who are on duty, or the personal use of the Club's furnishings or equipment which are not ordinarily available for member's use.
- 13. Dogs or other pets (with the exception of seeing eye dogs) are not permitted on the Club Facilities, except under special circumstances or with permission of the General Manager. When dogs are permitted on the grounds, they must be on a leash. Members are responsible for damage or injury caused by an animal owned by the member or under the member's control.
- 14. All complaints, criticisms or suggestions of any kind relating to any of the operations of the Club or its employees must be in writing, signed and addressed to the General Manager.
- 15. Members and their guests may not abuse any of the Club's employees, verbally or otherwise. All service employees of the Club are under the supervision of the General Manager and no member or guest shall reprimand or discipline any employee, nor shall a member request an employee to leave the Club Facilities for any purpose whatsoever. Any employee not rendering courteous and prompt service should be reported to the General Manager immediately.
- 16. At times designated by the Club, valet parking will be required for use by members.
- 17. No unlicensed vehicles are permitted on the Club Facilities.
- 18. Smoking is permitted only in designated areas. Cigar and pipe smoking are not permitted in the dining and lounge areas.
- 19. Absolutely no fireworks are permitted anywhere on the Club Facilities or adjacent areas unless part of a fireworks exhibit organized and conducted by the Club.
- 20. Firearms and all other weapons of any kind are not permitted at the Club Facilities at any time.
- 21. No member, visitor or guest is allowed in the service or restricted areas of the Club.
- 22. Use of the Club Facilities may be restricted or reserved from time to time by the Club.

- 23. Violation of any of these rules or conduct in a manner prejudicial to the best interests of the Club will subject the person in violation to disciplinary action in accordance with the By-Laws of the Club.
- 24. The Board of Directors of the Club reserves the right to amend or modify these rules as it determines appropriate from time to time and will notify the membership of any change.
- 25. The personnel of the Club have full authority to enforce these rules and any infractions will be reported to the General Manager.
- 26. In no event shall the Club discriminate against any individual because of the individual's race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap or marital status.

MEMBERSHIP CARDS

- 1. The Club will issue a membership card to the member, as well as to the other members of his or her family who are eligible for membership privileges. Membership cards will include the member's name and club account number. Membership cards will only be issued upon payment of dues by the member.
- 2. Membership cards will not be issued to children under the age of twelve (12) or over the age of twenty-two (22). Members and their families must have their membership card with them at all times while using the facilities of the Club.
- 3. A membership card may not be used by any person other than the person to whom it is issued. Membership cards are not transferable.
- 4. Membership cards will be mailed to the members at the address designated by the member or held for pick-up at the Membership Office as requested by the member.
- 5. In the event of a lost or stolen membership card, the Club must be notified immediately. The member's club account will be cancelled and the Club will issue a new membership card number. Until notification of card loss or theft is received by the Club, the member shall be responsible for all charges placed on the account.
- 6. A card replacement fee, as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time, will be charged for lost or stolen membership cards or in any situation where a club account number is changed.
- 7. Each member shall receive such identification decals and other insignia as the Club may from time to time designate, and shall display such insignia as required by the Club from time to time.
- 8. Membership cards must be presented at the point of sale for all transactions, excluding food and beverage, in which case presentation of membership cards is required prior to placing any order.

MEMBER DUES AND CHARGES

- 1. Members' dues will be billed on an annual basis unless otherwise determined by the Club.
- 2. A member is entitled to charge privileges at the Club so long as his or her membership is in good standing. Cash payments may or may not be permitted as determined by the Club from time to time.
- 3. All food, beverage, merchandise and services of the Club charged to the member's club account will be billed monthly and each member's club account shall be due and payable upon receipt of the monthly statement.
- 4. Club accounts shall be deemed delinquent from the date first billed if payment is not received within 30 days after the date of the monthly statement. Past due bills will be subject to a one and one-half percent (1.5%) late payment charge per month, but not to exceed the maximum amount permitted by law. The late payment charge shall accrue 30 days from the date of the monthly statement until the account is paid in full. Members having past due bills may be charged a reinstatement fee at the discretion of the Club to reactivate an account once it is deemed delinquent.
- 5. If a member fails to pay any club account within 30 days of when it is first billed, the Club shall have the right to suspend membership privileges in the Club at any time until the delinquent account is paid in full. Continued delinquency for a period of 90 days from the date a club account is first billed or repeated incidents of delinquency by a member may result in termination of membership in the Club.
- 6. When a membership is issued in the name of more than one person, each person shall be jointly and severally liable for all dues, fees and other charges and liabilities associated with the membership.
- 7. If the club account of any member is delinquent, the Club may at its option take whatever action it deems necessary to effect collection, including without limitation, suspension or termination of a membership or legal action. If the Club commences any legal action to collect any amount owed by any member or to enforce any other liability of any member to the Club, and if judgment is obtained by the Club, the member shall also be liable for all costs and expenses of such legal action and reasonable attorneys' fees, including any fees required in connection with appellate proceedings.

MAILING ADDRESSES

1. Each member shall be responsible for filing with the Membership Office, in writing, preferably on a form provided by the Club, his or her mailing address and any changes thereto, where the member wishes all notices and invoices of the Club to be sent. A member shall be deemed to have received mailings from the Club ten (10) days after they have been mailed to the address on file with the Club. In the absence of an address on file at the Membership Office, any Club mailing may, with the same effect described above, be addressed as the General Manager may think is most likely to cause its prompt delivery.

2. The Club must be notified in writing of any change of address. Failure to do so shall constitute a waiver of the right to receive club notices, bulletins and any other communications, and a violation of these rules.

CLUB SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES

- 1. The Club provides a variety of social, cultural and recreational events in which all members are encouraged to participate.
- 2. The Club desires to encourage the use of the Club Facilities by members for private parties on any day or evening, provided it does not interfere with the normal operation of the Club, or with the services regularly available to members. Members are requested to make reservations with the appropriate Club personnel for available dates and arrangements.
- 3. Private functions are permitted at the Club only with prior permission of the General Manager. The individual sponsoring the function shall assume full responsibility for the conduct of guests in accordance with these rules. The individual sponsoring the private function shall be responsible for any damage caused by the installation of any decor and shall be responsible for the removal of all such decor. The sponsor of the function shall be responsible for the payment of any charges not paid by individuals attending the private function.
- 4. Special event functions will be scheduled from time to time at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

RESIGNATION OF MEMBERSHIP

- 1. A member may resign membership in the Club by delivering written notice of resignation to the Club's Membership Office in accordance with the By-Laws of the Club.
- 2. Notwithstanding any resignation, suspension or termination of membership, the member and his or her spouse shall remain liable for any amounts unpaid on the member's club account, membership dues, assessments and other fees until the Club reissues the resigned member's membership.

Loss or Destruction of Property or Instances of Personal Injury

1. Each member as a condition of membership, and each guest as a condition of invitation to the Club Facilities, assumes sole responsibility for his or her property. The Club shall not be responsible for any loss or damage to any private property used or stored on the Club Facilities.

- 2. Any such personal property which may have been left in or on the facilities for six (6) months or more without payment of storage thereon, may be sold by the Club, with or without notice, at a public or private sale, or may be otherwise disposed of, and the proceeds, if any, shall belong to the Club.
- 3. No person shall remove from the Club's premises any property or furniture belonging to the Club without proper written authorization. Every member of the Club shall be liable for any property damage and/or personal injury at the Club, or at any activity or function operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club, caused by the member, any guest or any family member. The cost of such damage shall be charged to the responsible member's club account.
- 4. Any member, family member, guest or other person who, in any manner, makes use of or accepts the use of any apparatus, appliance, facility, privilege or service whatsoever owned, leased or operated by the Club, or who engages in any contest, game, function, exercise, competition or other activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club, either on or off the Club's premises, shall do so at his or her own risk. The member, his or her family members and guests shall hold the Club, WB Texas Resort Communities, L.P. (the "Company") and their affiliates, directors, officers, employees, representatives and agents ("Indemnified Parties") harmless from any and all loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by it, him or her, resulting therefrom and/or from any act or omission, whether due to negligence or otherwise, of any Indemnified Party. Any member shall have, owe and perform the same obligation to the Indemnified Parties hereunder in respect to any such loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by any guest or family member.

Should any party bound by these Rules and Regulations bring suit against any of the Indemnified Parties in connection with any event operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club or on any other claim or matter in connection with membership in the Club, and fail to obtain judgment therein against any one or more of them, said party shall be liable to the prevailing Indemnified Parties for all costs and expenses incurred by them in the defense of such suit, including court costs and attorneys' fees and expenses through all appellate proceedings.

RESERVATIONS AND CANCELLATIONS

- 1. Dinner reservations may be required from time to time as determined by the Board of Directors. Reservations for parties of more than ten (10) persons will be accommodated on an "as available" basis.
- 2. Reservations are required for most activities of the Club and shall be accepted on a first-come, first-served basis by pre-registering with the appropriate personnel of the Club.
- 3. For all functions of the Club held in the dining rooms of the Club, tables will be assigned on a first-call, first-choice basis. Reservations for special tables will not be accepted.
- 4. Reservations for dining will be held for only fifteen (15) minutes after the reserved time.

- 5. Reservations for banquets and special events should be made at least three (3) weeks in advance. Cancellations must be made at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance. If this is not done, the member will be charged for each person reserved. A non-refundable deposit may be required for banquet reservations.
- 6. The dining and special event reservation policies shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

GRATUITIES

- 1. For the convenience of all members, a gratuity percentage, as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors, may be added to all food and beverage sales.
- 2. Cash tipping is not permitted by members of the Club.
- 3. In November, it is customary to send a letter from the President providing an opportunity for the members to contribute to a Holiday Fund for employees, and a suggested contribution, of which payment is voluntary, and will be included on each member's bill. As you know, the Club employs many people, and this Holiday Fund provides the membership with an opportunity to show your appreciation of their efforts. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the distribution of these funds.

CHILDREN

- 1. Children under twelve (12) years of age are not allowed at the Club Facilities unless accompanied and supervised by an adult unless otherwise permitted by the Board of Directors.
- 2. Children under the lawful drinking age are not permitted in any lounge unless accompanied by an adult.
- 3. Members are responsible for the conduct and safety of their children when at the Club Facilities.

ATTIRE

- 1. It is expected that members will choose to dress in a fashion befitting the surroundings and atmosphere provided in the setting of the Club. It is also expected that members will advise their guests of the dress requirements.
- 2. Gentlemen and ladies are requested to dress in a fashion compatible with the appropriate occasion.
- 3. Collared shirts and shoes must be worn at all times when on Club Facilities. Spiked golf shoes must be confined to designated areas when worn inside.
- 4. The dress standards of the Club may be changed or waived by Club management from time to time for special activities and functions.

GUEST PRIVILEGES

Guest privileges may be extended to guests of members subject to applicable guest fees, charges and rules and regulations established by the Board of Directors from time to time. Although it is the intention of the Club to accommodate guests without inconvenience to the members, the Club reserves the right to limit the number of guests that accompany a member on any given day. Guest privileges may be denied, withdrawn or revoked at any time for reasons considered sufficient by the Board of Directors in its sole and absolute discretion.

- 1. The Board of Directors may establish rules restricting the number of times a particular day guest may use the golf, tennis, fitness and social facilities of the Club.
- 2. A particular individual using the Club Facilities as a guest must be registered by the sponsoring member with the Club. Guests will be charged guest fees for use of the Club Facilities as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- 3. Guests will be entitled to use the Club Facilities only in accordance with the privileges of the category of membership of the sponsoring member upon payment of daily fees.
- 4. Guests, including extended family members, must be accompanied by the sponsoring member, Golf Professional, assistant Golf Professional, or General Manager when using the golf facility and by the sponsoring member during their use of any other Club Facilities, unless otherwise determined by the Club from time to time.
- 5. No guest may use the golf facilities more than six times, regardless of the sponsoring member unless otherwise determined by the Club from time to time.
- 6. Guest charges for any services will be charged against the sponsoring member's club account.
- 7. The Club reserves the right to require identification by each guest.
- 8. Guest privileges may be limited by the Club, from time to time, in the sole and absolute discretion of the Club. Notice of such limitation will be given by the Club.
- 9. The sponsoring member shall be responsible for all charges incurred by the guest. The sponsoring member is also responsible for the conduct of a guest while at the Club. If the manner, deportment or appearance of any guest is deemed to be unsatisfactory, the sponsoring member shall, at the request of the Club, cause such guest to leave the Club Facilities.

GENERAL GOLF RULES

- 1. The Rules of Golf as adopted by the U.S.G.A. together with the Rules of Etiquette as adopted by the U.S.G.A. shall be the rules of the Club, except when in conflict with local rules or with any of the Rules and Regulations herein.
- 2. All members and guests must register in the pro shop before beginning play. Members shall present their cards at registration.

- 3. Walking is permitted.
- 4. All players must check in with the starter.
- 5. Practice is not allowed on the golf course. The practice grounds and practice putting green should be used for all practice.
- 6. If a foursome or other group of players fails to keep their place on the course and loses more than one clear hole on the players ahead, the group must allow the following group to play through. Do the same when you stop to search for a lost ball. No more than five minutes should be used to search for lost balls.
- 7. All players who stop after playing nine (9) holes for any reason must obtain permission from the starter to resume play.
- 8. All tournament play must be approved in advance by the Board of Directors.
- 9. Enter and leave bunkers at the nearest level point to the green. Smooth sand over with a rake upon leaving.
- 10. Repair all ball marks on the green.
- 11. Repair all divots.
- 12. Ball hawking is not allowed on the course at any time.
- 13. Each player must have his or her own set of golf clubs.
- 14. Proper golf attire is required for all players. A description of "proper attire" shall be posted prominently in the men's and women's locker rooms from time to time. Members are expected to insure that their family members and guests adhere to such rules.
- 15. Improperly dressed golfers shall be asked to change before playing. If you are in doubt concerning your attire, please check with the pro shop before starting play. Any misuse or disregard of the rules and regulations may cause privileges to be reviewed or suspended.
- 16. If lightning is in the area, all play shall cease.
- 17. The Club may close the golf course to general play during adverse weather conditions, when necessary maintenance of the golf facilities is required, when the course could be damaged by play or when golf tournaments and promotional events are held at the Club.
- 18. Jogging, bicycling or recreational walking is not permitted on the golf course while the course is open.

- 19. No beverage coolers are permitted on the course unless provided by the Club.
- 20. Twosomes may play at the discretion of the pro shop. Twosomes should not expect to play through foursomes and should not exert any pressure on the groups ahead. Foursomes shall have the right of way.
- 21. Twosomes and singles may be grouped with other players, if available, at the discretion of the pro shop.
- 22. Groups of five (5) or more players shall only be permitted on the golf course with the permission of the pro shop.
- 23. Junior golf play will be at the discretion of the pro shop.

HOURS OF PLAY

The hours of play and pro shop hours shall be posted in the pro shop. The pro shop shall determine when the golf course is fit for play.

GOLF STARTING TIMES

The Club may establish an advance starting time advance reservation system to maximize the golf experience and minimize waiting periods. If the Club does establish such a system, the following rules shall apply.

- 1. Members may reserve a starting time in advance through the pro shop, subject to such advance tee time sign-up privileges as announced by the Club, from time to time. The staff shall assign the starting time depending on availability.
- 2. Starting times may be made in person or by phone during pro shop hours.
- 3. Starting time changes must be approved by the pro shop.
- 4. Players who cannot make their scheduled starting time should notify the pro shop of any cancellation as soon as possible or at least one hour prior to the scheduled time. If a player fails to cancel a starting time, the Club may charge a fee for the unused rounds.

REGISTRATION

- 1. All members and guests must register in the pro shop before beginning play and all members shall present their cards at registration.
- 2. Players late for their starting time may lose their right to the starting time and shall begin play only at the discretion of the starter.

PRACTICE GROUNDS

1. The practice grounds are open during normal operating hours as posted in the pro shop. The practice grounds may be closed for general maintenance from time to time at the Club's discretion.

- 2. Range balls are for use on the practice grounds. Range balls may not be used on the golf course.
- 3. Golf carts are not permitted on any tee area. Parking of golf carts is allowed in designated areas.
- 4. Balls must be hit from designated areas.
- 5. Proper golf attire is required at all times on the practice range.

CADDIE RULES

- 1. Members and guests may employ caddies to carry their clubs upon the terms and conditions established by the Club with respect to the Caddie Program.
- 2. The use of a caddie is required, whenever there is a caddie available.
- 3. The Club may establish days and times when caddies are required.
- 4. Caddies will be allowed to drive golf carts.
- 5. In inclement weather, all players and caddies should be warned of the conditions. Caddies are not expected to stay with their players if they feel threatened.
- 6. When reserving a tee time, members should request the number of caddies needed. As a general guide, one caddie will carry two bags and one forecaddie will service an entire foursome.
- 7. The use of a caddie or forecaddie is required when a member hosts three guests.

GENERAL GOLF CART RULES

- 1. Golf carts shall not be used by a member or guest on the Club Facilities without proper assignment and registration in the pro shop. All golf carts must be leased through the Club.
- 2. Golf carts may only be used on the golf course when the course is open for play. Golf carts provided by the Club are not permitted in the parking lots.
- 3. Each operator of a golf cart must be at least sixteen (16) years of age and have a valid automobile driver's license.
- 4. Obey all golf cart traffic signs.
- 5. Always use golf cart paths where provided, especially near tees and greens. Use the ninety degree rule when in effect and cross fairways only at right angles.

- 6. Do not drive a golf cart within thirty (30) feet of a green, a tee or a bunker, except on golf cart paths.
- 7. Never drive a golf cart through a hazard.
- 8. Be careful to avoid soft areas on fairways, especially after rains. Use the roughs wherever possible.
- 9. Operation of a golf cart is at the risk of the operator. Cost of repair to a golf cart which is damaged shall be charged to the person who is responsible for such damage. All persons using a golf cart shall be held fully responsible for any and all damages, including damages to the golf cart, that are caused by the misuse of the golf cart by the person or their guests and shall reimburse the Club and/or any operator of the Club for any and all damages the Club may sustain by reason of misuse.
- 10. Each person using a golf cart accepts and assumes all responsibility for liability connected with operation of the golf cart. The person also expressly indemnifies and agrees to hold harmless the Club and its affiliates, employees, representatives and agents, from any and all damages, whether direct or consequential, arising from or related to the person's use and operation of the golf cart.
- 11. A "Course closed" or "hole closed" signs are to be adhered to without exception.
- 12. Violations of the golf cart rules may result in loss of golf cart privileges and/or playing privileges.

HANDICAPS

- 1. Handicaps are computed under the supervision of the pro shop in accordance with the current U.S.G.A. Handicap System.
- 2. All members and their guests with a U.S.G.A. approved handicap may participate in Club tournaments. All handicaps submitted may be reviewed by the pro shop.
- 3. To establish a handicap, a member must have turned in a minimum of five scores. Members are responsible for turning in all their scores on a daily basis.
- 4. Any member failing to turn in a score shall result in a score being posted that is equal to par.
- 5. The pro shop shall assist any members needing help with the posting procedures.
- 6. Accurate records are to be kept of scores turned in and recorded for all full rounds played. The pro shop shall determine if there are violations by members in turning in their scores.

GOLF COURSE ETIQUETTE

Persons using the golf course should do their part to make a round of golf a pleasant experience for everyone. Here are some suggestions:

- 1. Do not waste time. Anticipate the club or clubs you may need, and go directly to your ball. Always be near your ball to play promptly when it is your turn. If a player is delayed in making his shot, it would be courteous for such player to indicate to another player to play which should not be deemed playing out of turn.
- 2. The time required to hole out on and around the green is a chief cause of slow play. Study and clear the line of your putt while others are doing the same. Be ready to putt when it is your turn.
- 3. Be sociable, but reserve your extended conversations for the 19th hole.
- 4. When approaching a green, park your golf cart on the cart path on the best direct line to the next tee. This can save about one-half hour per round. Never leave the golf cart in front of the green where you will have to go back to get it, while the following players wait for you to get out of the way.
- 5. When play of a hole is completed, leave the green promptly and proceed to the next tee without delay. Do the scoring for the completed hole while the others in your group are playing from the next tee.
- 6. If you are not holding your place on the course (see General Golf Rules), allow the players behind to play through. Do the same if you stop to search for a lost ball.
- 7. Carefully rake sand traps after use.

GENERAL TENNIS RULES

- 1. The Rules of Tennis as adopted by the U.S.T.A. shall apply at all times, except when in conflict with the local rules or with any of the rules and regulations herein.
- 2. All members and guests must register at the pro shop at least ten (10) minutes before starting to play. In the event the pro shop is closed, play will be on a first-come, first-served basis, in increments of one and one-half (1½) hours.
- 3. Players without a prearranged game are encouraged to call the pro shop who will assist in forming matches.
- 4. Court reservations may be made by phoning or visiting the pro shop.
- 5. Please notify the tennis staff of any cancellation as soon as possible. Players who do not notify the tennis staff of any cancellation may be charged the court fee as determined from time to time by the Club.

- 6. Group captains must give their name and membership number and the names of the players and their membership numbers, if applicable, of the group.
- 7. No standing reservations will be accepted.
- 8. At the end of their playing time, all players must promptly relinquish their court to the next players. Once a member is off the court, the member may sign up for the next available court time.
- 9. Singles and doubles may each play on a court for an hour and a half when other players are waiting.
- 10. No skateboards, bicycles, roller skates, etc. are permitted on a court.
- 11. All trash or litter must be deposited in receptacles provided for that purpose.
- 12. Proper tennis attire as determined by the pro shop is required at all times. Colors are permitted, but cut-offs, bermudas, jams, bathing suits, mesh shirts, tank tops, gym shorts, slacks and running shorts are not permitted. Shirts and regulation tennis shoes are required.
- 13. Proper tennis etiquette as set forth below should be observed at all times. Excessive noise, racquet throwing or profanity will not be permitted at any time.
- 14. The Club may reserve courts for special events when needed.
- 15. Use of tennis courts shall at all times be subject to the control of the Club.
- 16. The tennis facilities may be closed when necessary for maintenance operations or when dictated by safety considerations as determined by the Club.
- 17. The Club may implement temporary rules during peak play periods.

TENNIS ETIQUETTE

- 1. All persons preparing to enter or cross a court should wait until play has halted, then proceed quickly and quietly to their assigned court.
- 2. All persons requesting the return of a tennis ball from another court should ask only when play on that court has halted. Players should not retrieve a tennis ball from another court themselves.
- 3. All persons should refrain from loud or offensive language on the court or while spectating. A low profile is both appropriate and appreciated.
- 4. Persons not playing should stay off the court surfaces.
- 5. Children should not play games in the area of the pro shop or courts.

6. Courts should be vacated promptly after the reserved playing time is over.

FITNESS FACILITIES

- 1. Regular operating hours for the fitness facilities will be posted by the Club and may be changed from time to time.
- 2. A health questionnaire must be completed and signed before using the fitness facilities. No physician or nurse will be on duty.
- 3. Prior to use of the fitness facilities, a member and any guests will be required to sign a waiver of liability agreeing to hold the Company, the Club and their affiliates, directors, officers, employees, representatives and agents harmless from any and all injuries sustained from the use of the facility.
- 4. Guest fees may be charged for the fitness facilities. If fees are established, the member's club account will be billed.
- 5. Any member or guest with health or physical problems should first consult his or her physician before using any of the fitness facilities and notify staff upon entrance to the facility.
- 6. All weights and pieces of equipment must be returned to their proper places at the completion of use.
- 7. No one under sixteen (16) years of age is allowed on the treadmill.
- 8. Casual workout attire is acceptable at the fitness facilities: tee shirts, gym shorts or warm-up pants for men; leotards, tights, tee-shirts, gym shorts or warm-up pants for women. Proper footwear is required.
- 9. Pregnant women should not use the fitness facilities that would elevate their core body temperature.
- 10. No smoking, eating or drinking, including alcoholic beverages, is permitted at the fitness facilities.
- 11. It is the responsibility of all persons to obtain instruction on how to use the equipment prior to usage of such equipment, and to use the equipment only in accordance with such instructions.
- 12. It is the responsibility of all persons using the fitness facilities to consult with their physician, and such person should be in good physical condition and have no physical, medical or psychological conditions, disabilities, impairments or ailments, chronic or otherwise, which would preclude, impair or prevent him from using the fitness facilities, or engaging in active or passive exercise.
- 13. Members assume full risk of loss and responsibility for damage to their health.

- 14. No clothing or personal articles may be stored under benches or in the common areas.
- 15. Children under fourteen (14) years of age are not permitted to use the fitness facilities unless accompanied or supervised by an adult.
- 16. Horseplay, profanity, disruptive conduct and indiscreet behavior at the fitness facilities are strictly prohibited.
- 17. Stereo, television and tapes should not be turned up so loud as to disturb fellow members.
- 18. All jewelry and watches must be removed prior to exercising.